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Before the 

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

 

In the Matter of      ) 

        ) 

ENVISION, INC.      ) 

And        ) 

ENVISION BROADCAST NETWORK, LLC  )  

 

To: The Chief, Media Bureau 

Via: Office of the Secretary 

 

COMPLAINT AND REQUEST FOR ASSESSMENT  

OF MONETARY FORFEITURE 

 

 Comes now Rocking M Media, LLC, the licensee of, inter alia, radio broadcasting 

station  KWME (FM), FCC Facility ID Number 31894, licensed to Wellington, Kansas; and  

Rocking M Media, Wichita, LLC, the licensee of, inter alia, radio broadcasting stations KIBB 

(FM), FCC Facility ID Number 59995, licensed to Haven, Kansas; KVWF (FM), FCC Facility 

ID Number 164106, licensed to Augusta, Kansas; and KKGQ (FM), FCC Facility ID Number 

35020, licensed to Newton, Kansas, by and through counsel; and hereby submit this Complaint 

and Request for Assessment of Monetary Forfeiture  (Complaint) against Envision Broadcast 

Network, LLC, and its “affiliate,” Envision, Inc. (the two Envision entities being hereinafter 

referred to as Envision).  Rocking M Media, LLC and Rocking M Media Wichita, LLC, which 

have identical ownership, are hereinafter referred to collectively as RMM. This Complaint is 

filed pursuant to Section 1.41, Section 1.80(a)(2) and Section 1.80(b)(7) of the Commission’s 

Rules.
1
 As RMM will demonstrate herein, Envision, on or about September 23, 2019, without 

due process of law, took unlawful control of four of the radio broadcasting stations licensed to 

                                                 
1
 47 C.F.R. §§ 1.41, 1.80(a)(2) and 1.80(b)(7). 



2 

 

RMM by summarily seizing the broadcasting studios and equipment from which and with which 

RMM controlled, operated and programmed radio stations KWME, KVWF, KIBB and KKGQ 

(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Stations”), while those stations were on the air and 

were being operated legally. Envision seized all of the equipment of the Stations, which 

belonged to RMM, and refused RMM access to the studio facilities, despite the fact that the 

stations controlled from that studio were transmitting at the time they were taken over by 

Envision. Envision has since, and to date, refused to permit RMM or its agents to recover or 

operate that equipment, which is critical to the operation of all four of the subject radio 

broadcasting stations. It has also refused to allow RMM or RMM’s authorized time broker into 

the Station facilities, and it has caused the stations to be taken off of the air (which would not 

have occurred but for the unilateral actions of Envision. These actions are in violation of 

Sections 301 and 310(d) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended; they are with respect 

to KKGQ in violation of Section 73.1150 of the Commission’s Rules; and they are in violation 

of 18 U.S. Code § 1362.  In support for its Complaint, RMM states and avers as follows: 

 1. RMM owns and operates radio broadcasting stations in Kansas, and it has for several 

years. Until September of 2017, Envision Broadcast Network, LLC was the licensee of 

KKGQ(FM), licensed to Newton, Kansas. On or about April 5, 2017, RMM and Envision 

Broadcast Network, Inc. entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement whereby Envision 

Broadcast Network, Inc. would sell and assign the assets of KKGQ to RMM for specified 

consideration including a promissory note. Pursuant to Commission authority (See, BALH-

20170414ACW) the parties consummated the assignment of the assets of KKGQ to RMM on 

September 22, 2017. One of the assets acquired by RMM from Envision Broadcast Network, Inc. 

in that transaction was a commercial office lease of the studio facilities for KKGQ located at 604 
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North Main Street, Wichita, Kansas. The Lessor of that lease was Envision, Inc., which is 

described in the lease as an “affiliate” of Envision Broadcast Network, Inc. The term of the lease 

was two years, and it included a holdover provision entitling RMM to hold over after the 

expiration of the lease for a period of time, and then for the lease to become a month-to-month 

lease thereafter. RMM was never in arrears in the rent provision of the lease. RMM used the 

premises for the studio facilities of all four of the Stations, not just KKGQ.  

 2. Nevertheless, on September 23, 2019 Envision changed the locks on the studio, 

refused to allow RMM or RMM’s then Time Broker, Allied Media Partners, to enter the studio, 

and despite the fact that all four Stations were operating from the studio (which Envision knew 

or should have known, no one on behalf of the Licensee was able to control the Stations from the 

studio. On that same day, on advice of RMM’s undersigned communications counsel, RMM shut 

down all four Stations’ transmitters and the stations were taken off the air on September 23, 

2019.
2
 To the present time, neither RMM nor its time broker has had access to the Stations’ 

studios to operate the Stations, or to retrieve the equipment to establish a different studio facility 

with which to operate the Stations.  

 3. By taking control of the Stations while they were operating and by precluding the 

licensee from access to the control facilities for the Stations, Envision has unlawfully assumed 

control of all four of the Stations without prior Commission consent, and it has deprived RMM 

                                                 
2
 RMM was able to put KGGQ back on the air remotely on September 28, 2019, but on October 1, 2019 at 2:05 p.m. 

someone unknown to RMM who had access to the studio facilities from which RMM was locked out by Envision 

turned off equipment inside the studio, and KKGQ fell silent again. RMM was able to put KKGQ back on the air 

remotely on October 5, 2019 from 2:30 p.m. until 7:30 p.m. to broadcast a football game, but the station was taken 

off air again thereafter because the facilities to broadcast other programming do not exist outside the subject studio 

facilities. The exercise of control over the Stations from the Envision-seized studio facilities on October 1, 2019 

occurred in the following manner: at 2:05 that date, the transmitter audio dialed RMM’s engineer to tell him that it 

lost the signal from the studio. RMM engineers lost remote contact they had with the equipment inside the Envision 

building at that time, causing them to deduce that someone associated with Envision had to have turned off 

equipment in the studio.   
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of the ability to control the Stations. This is a violation of Section 310(d) of the Communications 

Act of 1934, which provides as follows: 

(d) Assignment and transfer of construction permit or station license. 

No construction permit or station license, or any rights thereunder, shall be 

transferred, assigned, or disposed of in any manner, voluntarily or involuntarily, 

directly or indirectly, or by transfer of control of any corporation holding such 

permit or license, to any person except upon application to the Commission and 

upon finding by the Commission that the public interest, convenience, and 

necessity will be served thereby. Any such application shall be disposed of as if 

the proposed transferee or assignee were making application under section 308 of 

this title for the permit or license in question; but in acting thereon the 

Commission may not consider whether the public interest, convenience, and 

necessity might be served by the transfer, assignment, or disposal of the permit or 

license to a person other than the proposed transferee or assignee. 

   

 4. By forcibly taking control of the Stations while they were operating and by assuming 

control of the facilities of the Stations and the location from which programming was initiated 

while the Stations were operating to the exclusion of the licensee and its Time Broker, and by 

turning off the remote control equipment in the studio on October 1, 2019, Envision operated and 

controlled the Stations itself, without an instrument of authorization from the Commission. 

Section 301 of the Communications Act forbids precisely this activity. It reads, in relevant part, 

as follows: 

No person shall use or operate any apparatus for the transmission of energy or 

communications or signals by radio (a) from one place in any State, Territory, or 

possession of the United States or in the District of Columbia to another place in 

the same State, Territory, possession, or District; or (b) from any State, Territory, 

or possession of the United States, or from the District of Columbia to any other 

State, Territory, or possession of the United States; or (c) from any place in any 

State, Territory, or possession of the United States, or in the District of Columbia, 

to any place in any foreign country or to any vessel; or (d) within any State when 

the effects of such use extend beyond the borders of said State, or when 

interference is caused by such use or operation with the transmission of such 

energy, communications, or signals from within said State to any place beyond its 

borders, or from any place beyond its borders to any place within said State, or 

with the transmission or reception of such energy, communications, or signals 

from and/or to places beyond the borders of said State; or (e) upon any vessel or 
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aircraft of the United States (except as provided in section 303(t) of this title); or 

(f) upon any other mobile stations within the jurisdiction of the United States, 

except under and in accordance with this chapter and with a license in that behalf 

granted under the provisions of this chapter. 

 

Envision did not at any time since September 23, 2019 have a license to operate or control any of 

the four radio stations at issue herein.  

 5. As discussed above, Envision was formerly, until September 22, 2017, the licensee of 

one of the four radio stations discussed herein, namely KKGQ(FM). Though money was due and 

owing to Envision from RMM with respect to the purchase money promissory note described 

hereinabove, Envision did not (and RMM did not permit Envision to) have any reversionary 

interest in KKGQ. Therefore, by unlawfully taking control of (inter alia) KKGQ while that 

Station was operating, and by taking control of the operation of KKGQ to the exclusion of 

RMM, Envision has violated Section 73.1120 of the Commission’s Rules, which prohibits any 

reversionary interest of a former licensee after assignment of that license to a new licensee. By 

implication, that rule would have to prohibit the exercise or any claim of entitlement to a 

reversionary interest in a radio station that has been assigned pursuant to Commission authority.  

That rule Section reads as follows: 

§ 73.1150   Transferring a station. 

   (a) In transferring a broadcast station, the licensee may retain no 

   right of reversion of the license, no right to reassignment of the 

   license in the future, and may not reserve the right to use the 

   facilities of the station for any period whatsoever. 

 

 

6. Finally, Envision’s actions constitute a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1362, which defines as 

a felony the willful or malicious injury of property, or material of any radio, telegraph, telephone 

or cable, line, station, or system, or other means of communication, operated or controlled by the 

United States, and the willful or malicious interference in any way with the working or use of 
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any such line, or system, or the willful or malicious obstruction, hindrance, or delay in the 

transmission of any communication over any such line, or system, or attempts or conspiracies to 

do such an act. 

 7. For all of the foregoing reasons, Rocking M Media, LLC and Rocking M Media 

Wichita, LLC hereby respectfully request that the Commission determine that the acts 

complained of by Envision were wrongful and violated the referenced statutory and regulatory 

obligations that Envision had and has; that it be instructed to cease and desist its exercise of 

unauthorized control over the operation of the subject radio broadcasting stations; and that the 

Commission assess a meaningful monetary forfeiture against Envision for each and every day 

that these violations occurred, as a deterrent to future similar unlawful behavior by Envision. 

RMM also requests that the Commission refer to the Justice Department for prosecution the 

violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1362 alleged herein. 

 

       Respectfully submitted, 

      Rocking M Media, LLC 

      Rocking M Media Wichita, LLC 

 

       

 

      By:___Christopher D. Imlay____________ 

       Christopher D. Imlay 

       Communications Counsel 

 

Booth, Freret & Imlay, LLC 

14356 Cape May Road 

Silver Spring, Maryland 20904-6011 

(301) 384-5525 telephone 

chris@imlaylaw.com 

 

October 17, 2019  

 

mailto:chris@imlaylaw.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I, Christopher D. Imlay, do hereby certify that I caused to be mailed, via first class U.S. 

Mail, postage prepaid, a copy of the foregoing COMPLAINT AND REQUEST FOR 

ASSESSMENT OF MONETARY FORFEITURE to the following, this 17
th

 day of October, 

2019. 

 

 

Mr. Albert Shuldiner, Chief* 

Audio Division, Media Bureau 

Federal Communications Commission 

445-12
th

 Street, S.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20554 

*via e-mail to Albert.Shuldiner@fcc.gov 

 

Tom Hutton, Esq., Deputy Division Chief (Law)* 

Audio Division, Media Bureau 

Federal Communications Commission 

445-12
th

 Street, S.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20554 

*via e-mail to Tom.Hutton@fcc.gov 

 

Lisa Scanlan, Esq., Deputy Division Chief  * 

Audio Division, Media Bureau 

Federal Communications Commission 

445-12
th

 Street, S.W. 

Washington, D.C. 20554 

*via e-mail to Lisa.Scanlan@fcc.gov 

 

John Trent, Esq. ** 

Putbrese Hunsaker & Trent, P.C. 

200 South Church Street 

Woodstock, VA 22664 

e-mail:  fccman3@shentel.net 

Counsel for Envision 

 

 

     ______Christopher D. Imlay_____ 

      Christopher D. Imlay  

 

*Via e-mail only 

** Via e-mail and U.S. Mail 

 

mailto:Albert.Shuldiner@fcc.gov
mailto:Tom.Hutton@fcc.gov
mailto:Lisa.Scanlan@fcc.gov
mailto:fccman3@shentel.net


 

 

I,  Brian Nugen, do hereby state and affirm under penalty of perjury, as follows. I understand that this 
document is being submitted to the Federal Communications Commission in response to an FCC inquiry 

as to the operating status of certain of the radio stations licensed to Rocking M Media, LLC and Rocking 

M Media Wichita, LLC.  

My name is Brian Nugen.  I serve as the current Operations Manager for KIBB-FM, KKGQ-FM, KVWF-FM, 
KWME-FM, KLEY-AM and KKLE-AM. I have been working for Rocking M Media since 2010. On Jan. 1, 

2019 I was the Operations Manager for Wichita, and Co-Manager of our Wellington Stations. 

When Rocking M Media began the sale of the stations to Allied Media Partners on April 1, of 2019,  I was 
designated as the LMA employee. While serving as the LMA/Operations Manager for Rocking M Media 
while Allied Media Partners was programming the stations,  I was responsible for overseeing the On-Air 

Department, Performed certain On-Air duties, coordinated with the Engineering department, and made 
sure that the stations operated within FCC parameters and guidelines, and reported any deviation from 
those rules to our Engineering department and RMM upper management. I also worked with the 

Engineering team to make sure that the stations maintained compliance with current FCC rules. 

On September 23 of 2019 we were locked out of our studios by the property landlord, we were unable 
to access our studios, and the equipment and documents contained therein. As we had lost control of 
our control point, I was instructed to power down our stations until further notice. The sale of the 

stations to Allied Media Partners did not go through, and at that time, my Role as the Operations 
Manager changed, as I no longer had any On-Air responsibilities. I continue to monitor stations to 
ensure FCC compliance, and notify the Engineering team of any issues. In January of 2020, Rocking M 

contracted with Sun Broadcast Group to deliver music to our stations under my supervision.  

KKGQ was turned back on, on a long term basis,  on January 6 of 2020, and it has been back on the air 

since that point, airing programming supplied from Sun Broadcasting Group. It has conducted required 

EAS tests.  

KIBB-FM was turned back on, on February 4, 2020 and has been on the air since that point to the 
present time, airing programming provided under contract with Sun Broadcasting Group. It has 

conducted required EAS tests. 

Work was done to return KVWF to the air, and while the station was turned back on and provided 
programming periodically between February 5, 2020 and March 1, 2020, technical issues with the 
transmitter and internet service delivery have prevented it from being able to resume regular 

programming on a long-term basis. 

Work was done to return KLEY and KKLE to the air permanently. However, there remain minor technical 
issues and, I understand, financial issues with respect to each AM station which have prevented those 
stations from being returned to the air permanently. Both stations were turned on and provided 

programming during the period August 11, 2020 through August 25, and then both were powered back 

off.  



KWME was turned back on after new studios were constructed and staff retained, on a long term basis 

on February 10th of 2020. KWME aired programming supplied by Sun Broadcast Group, and required 
EAS broadcasts were aired until an issue arose in March with the STL system. The station was  turned off 
due to technical issues, on March 15th of 2020. Work is ongoing now to fix the STL system.

 

Sincerely,  

 

Brian Nugen - Operations Manager Rocking M Media, Wichita 



Rocking M Media, LLC All Wichita Wellington and Winfield stations
Balance Sheet

January 1, 1999 to October 19, 2020

Total

ASSETS

Current Assets

Banl( Accounts

Bank of Commerce/WW"isc

BenningtonsB/Salina/mlsc

Kansas State Bank/Manhattan

Total Bank Accounts

Other Current Assets

Accounts Recelvable{iirrent

Total Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets

Buildings

Control room equf pment

Furniture & Fixtures

I nte met/co in puter soft`^/are

Office computers, printers

Transmitter tower and equlpment

Vehicles

Total Fixed Assets

Other Assets

Escrow -Connoisseur

FCC Licenses

Rent Deposit

Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND  EQUITY

Liabilities

Ciirrent Liabilities

Credit Cards

American Express Credit Card

Total Credit Cards

Otlier Current Liabilities

Accrued FCC Reg. Fees

Accriied property taxes

AmExp31002

Bank of Commerce KWME loan

Fin Pac # KWME BOG $1414.43

Fin  Pac Leasing KKGQ $1548.80

Payroll Clearing

Wichita bridge loan

Total CItller Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities

Bank of Commerce & Trust Co.

Due to shareholders

E. Cordon Johnson a Susan G. Johnson Revocable Trust

KKGQ-FM Note Payable

Note Payable Farmers Wichita

US Bank Kansas - Indirect Lending

Total  Long.Term Liablllties

Total  Liabilities

-90,739.64

-620.95

-1,000.00

92,360.59

-111.254.02

-$                                                                                                                                                         111,254.02

203,614.61

65,086.20

i2,I yffl .3/fa

7,980.00

3,747.00

29,097.00

254,505.23

58,997 00

491,469.82

-165.000.00

2,820,000.00

5,640.08

$                                                                                                                                      2,660,640.08

2,948,495.29

345.00

345.00

•22,558.52

-8,518.01

7,000,00

21,912.99

38,826.18

5,804.80

-5,569.83

3, 521, 511. 00

$                                                                                                                                           3.558,408.61

3,558,753.61

-50,340.56

1 1 , 650. 00

-146,876 64

-300,000.00

-75,569.31

-376.49

.$                                                                                                                                                   561,513.00

2,997,240.61



Equlty

Opening Bal Equity

Retained Earnings

Net Income

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

-65,000.00

-1,284,933.59

-253,942.82

-$                                                                                                                                                1,603,876.41

1,393,364.20

Monclay,  Oct  19.  2020 09.19:14 AM  GMT-7  -Accrual  Basis



Rocking M Media, LLC All Wichita Wellington and Winfield stations
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Bad Debt Recovery

Digital

Finance charges

LMA Fee lnc

Local advertising

Local Agency advertislng

Miscellaneoils revenue

Tower Rent/Income

Trade Income

Wheat State Ticket Income

Wlchita AIVIP Fieimbursements

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expenses

Bad Debt

CORP EXP

Internet Serv]ce

lvleals, restaurant

Total CORP EXP

ENG  EXP

Contract labor

Equipment Rental

Hotel, meals

Repairs & Maintenance

Tower Rent

Travel

Utilities

Total ENG EXP

Finance charge writeoff

G&A EXP

Bank Service Charges

Computer and lntemet Expenses

Dues/Subscriptions

FCC Regulatory Fees

Insurance/Cobra

lnsurance/Health

Insurance/Life

Janitorial

Late Payment Clig.

Meals/Restaurants

Cffiice Equipment Rental

Office Slipplles

Payroll Taxes/Expense

Postage and Freight

Rent/Studios Office

Repairs & fvlaintenance Bldgs

Salaries

Software

Telephone/Cellular

Telephone/Land Line

Travel

5.10

2,500.00

466.04

30,000-00

68,924.52

58,803.17

-1,555.00

10,800.00

68,176.00

18,169.86

57,592.65

$                                                                                                                                                        313,882.34

313.882.34

2,181.82

199.98

72.30

272.28

8,984.29

51, 282 40

141.61

9, 145. 1 3

128,650.52

513.09

108.303.28

307,020.32

251.79

284 52

28,043.08

57.20

29,442.53

-432.12

16,467.19

78.20

1 , 120. 68

1, 302. 48

34017

6,230.24

887.45

15,717.79

124.70

3,060.00

5,522.67

58,267.93

5,497.62

1,692.96

24,705.00

180.00



utilities/Ofrices

Total  G&A EXP

Interest Expense

PGM EXP

Advertising

ASCAP

BIVII

Contract Labor

Fees/Content Providers

Fees/Sports

Hotel, motel

Meals & Restaurant

Music Software

Radlo Music License Comm

Salaries

SESAC

Streaming

Travel

Total PGM EXP

SALES EXP

Agency Commissions

Commissions

Cred it Adj ustments

Local Focus Agency Commissions

Office supplies

Palm Beacll expense

Promotions

Salaries

Total SALES EXP

Taxes F`E Property

Trade Expense

Wheat State Ticket Distrlbution From Ticket Sales

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Net Income

27.404.45

225.994.74

82,636.87

20.00

21.964.00

12,477.16

12,894.00

6,293.80

484.00

244.00

18.75

7,881.60

1,213.96

108,725.88

2,968.58

4,179.72

70.27

179,435.72

9,503.40

32.753.00

3.079.80

806.04

9,62

10,000.00

733.13

1 , 130. 27

58,015.26

7,248.87

68,407.15

33, 1 1 1 . 05

$                                                                                                                                         964,575.87

-$                                                                                                                                         650,693.53

650,693.53

Monday,  Oct  19,  2020 09:26:37 AM  GMT-7 -Accrual  Basis



Rocking M Media, LLC KVWF-FM
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Finance charges

Local advertising

Local Agency advertising

Trade Income

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expenses

ENG EXP

Tower Rent

Utilities

Total ENG EXP

Finance charge writeoff

G&A EXP

FCC Regulatory Fees

Late Payment Chg.

Total G&A EXP

PGM EXP

ASCAP

BMI

Fees/Content Providers

Music Software

Radio Music License Comm

SESAC

Total PGM  EXP

SALES EXP

Agency Commissions

Total SALES EXP

Trade Expense

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Net Income

35.25

5,105.00

5,728.00

1 1 ,299.00

$                                                      22,167.25

22,167.25

45,364.44

15,701.97

61,066.41

72.54

5,981.18

5.23

5,986.41

911.00

1,521.81

250.00

2.037.04

79.00

641 .32

951.60

11,206.60

$                                                   84,723.73

$                                               62,556.48

62,556.48

Monday, Oct 19, 2020 09..32:25 AM GMT-7 -Accrual Basis



Rocking M Media, LLC KKGQ-FM
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Finance charges

Local advertising

Local Agency advertising

Tower Rent/Income

Trade Income

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expenses

CORP EXP

Internet Service

Total CORP EXP

ENG EXP

Contract labor

Equipment Rental

Repairs & Maintenance

Travel

Utilities

Total ENG EXP

Finance charge writeoff

G&A EXP

FCC Regulatory Fees

Late Payment Chg.

Repairs & Maintenance Bldgs

Telephone/Land Line

Total G&A EXP

PGM EXP

ASCAP

BMI

Contract Labor

Music Software

Radio Music License Comm

SESAC

Streaming

Total PGM EXP

SALES EXP

Agency Commissions

Credit Adjustments

Total SALES EXP

Trade Expense

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

32.07

22,009.31

9,506.17

10,800.00

14,548.00

$                                                      56,895.55

56,895.66

99.99

99.99

1,542.00

29,889.93

2,923.28

75.00

5,843.17

40,273.38

8.73

7.181.28

93.31

3,897.76

1 ,071 .52

12,243.87

2,075.00

1 ,156.40

5,294.00

1,912.19

193.93

412.20

624.50

11,668.22

1,465.65

-1,122.20

343.45

14,508.25

$                                                     79,145.89

22,250.34



Net Income 22,250.34

Monday, Oct 19, 2020 09:34:44 AM GMT-7 -Accrual Basis



Rocking M Media, LLC KIBB-FM
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Finance charges

Local advertising

Local Agency advertising

Trade Income

Total Income

Gross PI.ofit

Expenses

Bad Debt

ENG EXP

Contract labor

Repairs & Maintenance

Tower Rent:

Utilities

Total ENG EXP

Finance charge writeoff

G&A EXP

Computer and Internet Expenses

FCC Regulatory Fees

Late Payment Chg.

Total G&A EXP

PGM  EXP

ASCAP

BMI

Contract Labor

Fees/Content Providers

Music Software

Radio Music License Comm

SESAC

Total PGM  EXP

SALES EXP

Agency Commissions

Credit Adjustments

Local Focus Agency Commissions

Total SALES EXP

Trade Expense

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Net Income

147.1 1

22,046.21

38,309.00

18,955.00

$                                                     79,457.32

79,457.32

156.40

2,000.00

2,430.00

71,089.00

63,997.03

139,516.03

1 1 1 .92

17,272.99

6,824.97

•51.59

24,046.37

13,586.00

7,907.36

3,500.00

4,500.00

2,037.04

654.41

1,642.51

33,827.32

6,151.35

1 ,000.00

806.04

7,957.39

19,382.50

$                                                  224,997.93

J$                                                   145,540.61

145,540.61



Rocking M Media, LLC KWME-FM
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Digital

Finance charges

Local advertising

Local Agency advertising

Trade Income

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expenses

Bad Debt

ENG EXP

Equipment Rental

Repairs & Maintenance

Tower Rent

Utilities

Total ENG EXP

Finance charge writeoff

G&A EXP

Computer and Internet Expenses

FCC Regulatory Fees

Late Payment Cng.

Telephone/Land Line

Total G&A EXP

Interest Expense

PGM EXP

ASCAP

BMI

Music Software

Radio Music License Comm

SESAC

Total PGM EXP

SALES EXP

Agency Commissions

Credit Adjustments

Total SALES EXP

Trade Expense

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Net Income

2,500.00

45.51

6,989.00

4,460.00

14,438.00

$                                                     28,432.51

28,432.51

500.00

18,263.61

620.95

12,197.08

20,548.46

51,630.10

22.90

181.00

3,021.13

8.89

1,207.19

4,418.21

1,794.70

1,038.00

720.56

1 ,895.33

128.62

125.37

4,016.80

14,373.80

$                                                    80,664.39

J$                                                     52,231.88

52,231.88



Rocking M Media, LLC KLEY-AM, K262CQ
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Finance charges

Local advertising

Local Agency advertising

Trade Income

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expenses

Bad Debt

Finance charge writeoff

G&A EXP

Computer and Internet Expenses

FCC Regulatory Fees

Late Payment Chg.

Total G&A EXP

PGM EXP

ASCAP

BMI

Radio Music License Comm

SESAC

Total PGM EXP

SALES EXP

Agency Commissions

Total SALES EXP

Trade Expense

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Net Income

206. 1 0

11,275.00

800.00

4,436.00

$                                                                                  16,717.10

16,717.10

750.00

35.70

6,295.87

1,090.00

595.35

79.00

139.51

120.00

4,436.00

$                                                                              13,541.43

$                                                                                   3,175.67

3,175.67

Monday, Oct 19, 2020 09:47:05 AM GMT-7 -Accrual  Basis



Rocking M Media, LLC KKLE-AM
Profit and Loss

January 1, 2019 -October 19, 2020

Total

Income

Local advertising

Trade Income

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expenses

ENG  EXP

Utilities

Total ENG EXP

G&A EXP

FCC Regulatory Fees

Late Payment Chg.

Telephone/Land Line

Total G&A EXP

PGM  EXP

ASCAP

BMI

Fees/Sports

Radio Music License Comm

SESAC

Total PGM EXP

Trade Expense

Total Expenses

Net Operating Income

Net Income

1,500.00

4,500.00

$                                                       6'000.00

6,000.00

1 ,127.78

1,127.78

3,002.35

13.57

1 ,408.41

4,424.33

1,090.00

575.68

484.00

79.00

7.ffi;fi

2,236.35

4,500.00

$                                                      12,288.46

L$                                                        6,288.46

6,288.46

Monday,  Oct 19, 2020 09:49:53 AM GMT-7 - Accrual Basis
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